
Damian Allen
Chief Executive
___________________________________________________________________
Issued on: Wednesday, 19 February, 2020

Governance Services Officer for this meeting Andrea Hedges
Tel. 01302 736716

Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council
www.doncaster.gov.uk

Agenda
___________________________________________________________________

To all Members of the

STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL ON 
RELIGIOUS EDUCATION (SACRE)
Notice is given that a Meeting of the above Committee is to be held as follows:

 
Venue:    Room 007a and b - Civic Office, Waterdale, Doncaster, DN1 3BU

Date:       Thursday, 27th February, 2020

Time:      4.30 pm
____________________________________________________________________

Items for Discussion:
    Page No.

1.  Election of Chair  

2.  Apologies for absence.  

3.  Minutes of the Meeting held on 21 November, 2019  1 - 6

A. Reports where the public and press may not be excluded.

4.  Report from Lat Blaylock, RE Today covering current training, writing 
curriculum plans for our RE syllabus and the Primary 1000 project to 
support schools  

5.  Religious Education GCSE Entries and Local Authority results  

6.  Doncaster Standing Advisory Council for Religious Education 
(SACRE) Annual Report 2018-2019 and SACRE Action Plan for 
2019-2020.  

Public Document Pack



7.  Dates and times of Future Meetings 

 Thursday, 25 June, 2020, at 4.30 pm

 Thursday, 12 November 2020, at 4.30 pm 

 Thursday, 25 February, 2021, at 4.30 pm

 Thursday, 1st July, 2021, at 4.30 pm

 Thursday, 11 November, 2021, at 4.30 pm

 Thursday, 17 February 2022, at 4.30 pm 

Members of the Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education (SACRE) 

Chair – 
Vice-Chair – Father Dan Parkinson 

Councillors Lani-Mae Ball, John Gilliver, Derek Smith and Jonathan Wood

Rev Tom McCready, Doncaster Interfaith
Mr R Iball, Methodist
Mrs P Kaur, Sikh
Ms S Norburn, Humanist
Mr S Syed, Muslim
Mr B Teimoori, Baha’l
Lucy Saxton, Roman Catholic
Mary Sivaanbu, Hindu
Mrs Carole Cahm – Jewish
Ms J Crowther, Church of England
Mr A Depledge, Church of England
Ms A Nicolson, National Union of Teachers
Mr T Griffiths, National Association of Head teachers
Ms Sally Faulkner, National Association of School Masters/Union of Women Teachers
Ms Tara Moxon, National Education Union
Ms Danielle Heath - National Education Union



A. 1

DONCASTER METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL ON RELIGIOUS EDUCATION (SACRE)

THURSDAY, 21ST NOVEMBER, 2019

A  MEETING of the STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL ON RELIGIOUS EDUCATION 
(SACRE) was held in Room 007A and B, at the Civic Office, on THURSDAY, 21ST 
NOVEMBER, 2019, at 5.00 pm.

PRESENT: 

Councillor John Gilliver - (In the Chair for this meeting)

Councillor Derek Smith (Items 1 – 9).

Sally Faulkner, Danielle Heath, Richard Iball, Pahani Kaur, Reverend Tom McCready, 
Tara Moxon and Father Dan Parkinson.

APOLOGIES: 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Jonathan Wood and Carole 
Cahm, Joanne Crowther, B Teimoori and Paul Ruane.

1 Election of Chair 

The Governance Officer opened the meeting and sought nominations for the position of 
Chair of SACRE for 2019/20.

No nominations were received.

To enable the meeting to proceed, Councillor John Gilliver agreed to Chair for this meeting 
only. Nominations for Chair would be sought at the next meeting scheduled in February, 
2020.

AGREED that the election of a Chair of SACRE be re-considered at the next meeting 
of SACRE in February, 2020.

2 Election of Vice-Chair 

Councillor Gilliver sought nominations for the position of Vice-Chair of SACRE for 2019/20.

AGREED that Father Dan Parkinson be elected as Vice-Chair of SACRE for 2019/20.

3 Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting.

4 Minutes of the meeting held on 26th June, 2019 

AGREED that the minutes of the meeting held on 26th June, 2019 be agreed as a 
true record, subject to the ‘Dates of the next meetings of SACRE’, in relation to 
Recommendation of Minute No.5, be amended to read as follows:-

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



A. 2

 Thursday, 27th February, 2020, at 4.30pm, at the Civic Office
 Thursday, 25th June, 2020, at 4.30pm, at the Civic Office

5 Membership of the Committee – (Verbal) 

The Governance Officer reported that in order to ensure that SACRE had good 
representation from all faiths and denominations, the following 5 new Members have been 
appointed to SACRE:-

 Father Dan Parkinson (Assistant Curate at Doncaster Minster – Church of England 
representative)

 Carole Cahm (Sheffield Synagogue – Christian Representative)
 Sally Faulkner (NASUWT, Sandringham Primary School – Teacher representative)
 Tara Moxon (NEU, Rowena Academy – Teacher representative)
 Danielle Heath (NEU, Rowena Academy RE Lead – Teacher representative) 

Members joined the Chair in welcoming the new Members and introductions were made 
by new and existing members. 

AGREED that the new appointments to SACRE be noted.

6 Update from RE Today – (Verbal) 

Lat Blaylock, Consultant for RE Today, tabled a document and provided an overview of the 
following key national items of interest:-

 NATRE Secondary Survey 2019: Results Presented to the DfE
It was highlighted that the key findings of NATRE’s survey carried out this year, had 
found that 50% of Academy pupils were not receiving the Religious Education they 
were entitled to at Key Stage 4.

 Ofsted: New Interest in RE
The new Framework had highlighted that all pupils in maintained schools, must 
receive their entitlement to RE, age-appropriate relationships and sex education, in 
line with national curriculum requirements. 

 Strictly RE Conference: 25th January in London
SACRE was invited to send a primary, secondary and a special school teacher 
representatives to the national RE Conference, and NATRE would pay for their 
attendance. Those attending would be asked to provide feedback to SACRE.

 New BBC Bite size Programming and Online Resources for 11-14s
The BBC had produced a new suite of materials for KS2.  Programs were now 
available for (4-7), (7-11), (11-14) and (14-16) year olds, which covered Christian, 
Hindu, Muslim, Jewish, Budhist and Seik traditions and communities.  It was also 
reported that a similar suite of materials had been produced for KS3, and was 
expected to be broadcast in April, 2020. 

 NATRE Meetings with the DFE and Parliamentarians
NATRE and the RE Council had attended the Conservative Party Conference this 
year, to promote their work. 

Page 2



A. 3

 NASACRE hears from DfE about school compliance on RE
Highlights focussed on the requirements for schools to teach RE, including what 
was expected of Academies.

 Better RE in 1000 Primary Schools: Can SACRE nominate schools for this RE 
Improvement Project
It was noted that 3 Doncaster Schools had signed up to this project earlier today. 
SACRE was asked whether they would be willing for NATRE to promote the Project 
to all Doncaster Primary Schools that were eligible. Its focus was to improve RE 
across the whole school.  It was noted that the cost for each person attending would 
be £55 for the 2-year project. 

Lat Blaylock also provided feedback following the secondary and primary training that had 
taken place earlier today, which focused on the Ofsted Inspection Framework.  Lat 
Blaylock felt that the training had been well received and reported that the evaluation 
forms would be shared with Members. 

Following the verbal update, SACRE thanked Lat Blaylock for his work and efforts in 
encouraging new members to join SACRE.

During discussion SACRE requested that the Council give consideration to funding 20 
primary schools to attend the ‘Better RE in 1000 Primary Schools’ Project at a cost of 
£1,100.  Sameena Choudry would raise this request with Paul Ruane, Head of Learning 
Provision.

Further to a request from Reverend McCready, Lat Blaylock agreed to send a digital copy 
of the Locally Agreed Syllabus to Father Parkinson.

In relation to the February 2020 training event, Sameena Choudry reported that the 
evaluation feedback received from teachers at the last event, would be reviewed and 
where possible, addressed in future training.

In terms of raising awareness of the training in February, it was observed that many 
schools did not use the ‘My Doncaster’ account and suggested that an invite should be 
sent out to schools via email, and raised at Governors and Primary and Secondary head 
teacher meetings.

It was also suggested that it would be useful to compile a list of those schools that had 
already confirmed attendance at the training and those schools that had attended training 
in the past. Sameena Choudry agreed to provide a list, but for Data Protection purposes, 
would not provide email addresses of those individuals.

Arising from further discussion, Richard Iball proposed that members give consideration to 
sending representatives to the ‘Strictly RE Conference’. Lat Blaylock confirmed the cost 
would be £175 per person. However, NATRE could offer 3 places at a cost of £285 (£95 
per person). Sameena Choudry agreed to raise this request with Paul Ruane, Head of 
Learning. If approved, arrangements would be put in place to select representatives to 
attend. 

Page 3



A. 4

AGREED that 

(1) the verbal update on RE Today, be received and noted;

(2) Sameena Chourdry to liaise with Paul Ruane, Head of Learning Provision, to 
determine if funding was available to offer the ‘Better RE in a 1000 Primary 
Schools Project’ course to schools; and

(3) Sameena Choudry to speak with Paul Ruane, regarding whether funding was 
available to send representatives to the ‘Strictly RE Conference’ and if 
approved, decide which teachers to invite via a selection process.

7 Web Page Update – (Verbal) 

Sameena Choudry provided a slide presentation on changes made to SACREs Web 
Page, to ensure that it was up to date. The web page included details on:-

 Diversity of Faiths on a rolling programme
 The membership and remit of SACRE
 Key Religious Organisations
 A web link to the Council Chamber website to access SACRE agendas and minutes 
 Training dates for RE Teachers for 2019-20 to be booked via ‘My Doncaster’
 Resources to Support Schools
 Key Publications
 Useful Links – web-link for schools to obtain a copy of the locally agreed Syllabus 

for RE

Further to a question from a member, it was noted that due to copyright laws, electronic 
copies of Doncaster's Locally Agreed Syllabus for RE 2019 - 2024, was not available to 
view online.  However, electronic copies were available on request by contacting Sameena 
Choudry. It was noted that there would be a cost to purchase a hard copy of the Syllabus.

During discussion, Pahani Kaur suggested that it would be helpful for the web page to 
provide a link to the contact details of all local Faith Organisations so that schools could 
arrange visits.  It was also proposed that the web page include details of the Protocols in 
place for schools wanting to visit faith organisations, to signpost people to information in 
relation to who to contact, opening times and whether there was a charge to visit.  
Members welcomed this proposal. It was also suggested that the web page include 
photographs of local faith organisations places of worship.  It was agreed that prior to 
Sameena Choudry including a web link of contacts on the web page, she would write to all 
local faith organisations seeking their permission to include their contact details and 
photographs on the web page and the approval process for such visits, and the designated 
contact person. 

Sally Faulkner spoke of her recent visit to the Doncaster Minster, which she found to be a 
very useful and positive experience, and had been very valuable to the children who had 
visited.  She asked whether more visits to other faith organisations could be offered to 
schools.  To assist schools making such requests to faith organisations, Sameena 
Choudry agreed to produce a pro-forma for schools to use to submit such requests, and 
that this be shared with SACRE members before being included on SACREs web page.  

Page 4



A. 5

Members were requested to review the information on the Web Page and feedback any 
changes to Sameena Choudry outside of the meeting.

SACRE thanked Sameena Choudry for her work in updating the website, which they felt 
was accessible, interesting and stimulating.

AGREED that
 

(1) the verbal update on the Web Page, be received and noted;

(2) subject to the approval of each faith organisation, the web page include a link to 
their respective contact details, opening times, who approves requests to attend 
such organisations, and costs for schools wanting to visit; and

(3) a letter be sent on behalf of SACRE to all local Faith Organisations, seeking 
their permission to include their contact details and photographs on SACREs 
web page. 

8 Draft Annual Report 2018-2019 and Draft SACRE Action Plan for 2019-2020. 

Members received the Draft Annual Report for 2018-19 which outlined the activities that 
had been undertaken by Doncaster SACRE in the last Academic Year 2018-2019.  
Members were also presented with a draft Action Plan for 2019-2020.

Sameena Choudry highlighted the areas within the Annual Report that required further 
work prior to publication; namely information to be included on the locally Agreed Syllabus; 
improvements to be made to the front cover picture; and Lat Blaylock to provide 
information in relation to the 2 training courses, (‘Spiritual, Moral and Cultural development 
– 20th March 2019’ and ‘Future Directions Workshop on RE’), as identified on Page 8 of 
the report.

In reviewing the report, Richard Iball suggested that the word ‘brilliant’ in the first sentence 
of the third paragraph, on page 6 of the report, be amended; with the words ‘excellent or 
high quality’. Sameena Choudry undertook to review this. 

Reverend McCready confirmed that he was happy with the report as drafted, and 
commended Sameena Choudry for her excellent work. It was subsequently agreed that 
Sameena Choudry liaise with Reverend McCready for him to provide narrative for 
inclusion in the report, on his own personal reflections of the work of SACRE over the past 
year.  Subject to the changes outlined above, it was agreed that Sameena would check 
and finalise the contents of the report, and then publish.

Following a request from members at the last meeting, Members were presented with a 
draft Action Plan, which set out 3 key priority areas, including a number of actions for 
SACRE to focus on during the 2019-2020 Academic Year.  Sameena Choudry reported 
that the plan provided a strategic overview of what SACRE was realistically able to 
achieve over the next year.  It was noted that the majority of actions in relation to Priority 
Area 1, had since been completed, or were due for completion in the near future.  

During consideration of the Action Plan, members attention was drawn to a typographical 
error in relation to the date, as identified in the third column of Section 3.1 of Priority 3 of 
the Plan, which should read as ‘2020’ and not ‘2010’.

Page 5



A. 6

Members were asked to contact Sameena Chourdry outside of the meeting, if they were 
not happy with the priorities, or wanted to put forward any activities for inclusion in the draft 
Plan.

To conclude, the Chair on behalf of SACRE, thanked Sameena Choudry for her work in 
drafting the Annual Report and Action Plan.

AGREED that

(1) the draft Annual Report 2018-19, be approved, subject to the above 
amendments being incorporated into the Annual report, prior to its publication; 
and

(2) the draft Action Plan for 2019-20 be approved, subject to the typographical 
error, as outlined above being amended and comments received by Sameena 
Choudry outside the meeting.

9 Key Stage Four Data and Statistics for 2018 and Draft Statistics for 2019 (to follow) 

Sameena Choudry reported that the data in relation to the attainment results for GCSE RE 
this year, would not be validated until January, 2020, and asked members if this item could 
be deferred until the next meeting. However, she stated that last year’s GCSE results were 
available for members’ consideration. 

AGREED that a report and presentation on Key Stage 4 Data and Statistics for 2018 
and Draft Statistics for 2019, be deferred for members consideration at the next 
meeting of SACRE in February, 2020.

10 Date and time of next meeting 

The date of the next meeting of SACRE was confirmed as Thursday, 27th February, 2020, 
at 4.30pm, at the Civic Office.

Sameena Chourdry reported that the provisional dates of future meetings would be 
submitted to the next meeting in February, prior to being approved by full Council.  
Members were asked to bring their diaries to the meeting to agree the dates.

AGREED

(1) to note the next meeting of SACRE was to be held on Thursday, 27th February, 
2020, at 4.30pm in the Civic Office; and

(2) that the dates of future meetings of SACRE for 2020/21, be included on the 
agenda for members consideration at the next meeting.

CHAIR:                                                    DATE:                    

Page 6


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 21 November, 2019
	Minutes


